## IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

MICHELLE BLOFSTEIN and ALEXIS FLORES, for themselves and all others similarly situated,	) ) )
Plaintiffs, v.	) ) Case No
MICHAEL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT, INC., EMMANUEL PETROGIANNIS (a/k/a MIKE PETROGIANNIS), IOANNIS PETROGIANNIS (a/k/a JOHN PETROGIANNIS) and NIKOLAOS PETROGIANNIS (a/k/a NICK PETROGIANNIS),	) ) ) ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED )
Defendants.	) ) _)

## **COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT**

Michelle Blofstein and Alexis Flores ("Plaintiffs"), by and through their undersigned attorneys, hereby make the following allegations against Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., Emmanuel Petrogiannis (a/k/a Mike Petrogiannis), Ioannis Petrogiannis (a/k/a John Petrogiannis) and Nikolaos Petrogiannis (a/k/a Nick Petrogiannis) (collectively "Defendants") concerning their acts and status upon actual knowledge and concerning all other matters upon information, belief and the investigation of their counsel:

### **NATURE OF THE ACTION**

- 1. Plaintiffs brings this action to redress Defendants' company-wide violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq. ("FLSA") and the Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act of 1968, 43 P.S. §§ 333.101, et seq. ("PMWA").
- 2. Plaintiffs bring their FLSA claim on a collective basis pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) for all people who worked as Metro Diner Servers in any state during the maximum limitations period (the "FLSA collective").

Plaintiffs brings their PMWA claims on a class action basis pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
 P. 23 for all people who worked as a Metro Diner Server in Pennsylvania since February 1, 2014 (the "Pennsylvania Class").

### **JURISDICTION AND VENUE**

- 4. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' FLSA claim pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331.
- 5. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' Pennsylvania claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.
  - 6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

### THE PARTIES

- 7. Plaintiff Michelle Blofstein is an individual who resides in Montgomery County, Pennsylvania. Ms. Blofstein has worked for Defendants as a Server at the Warminster West Diner from October 2012 to present. From October 2012 to June 2017, Ms. Blofstein worked about 70-80 hours per week. Since June 2017, Ms. Blofstein has worked about 20-40 hours per week. Ms. Blofstein is personally familiar with, and has been personally affected by, the policies and practices described in this Complaint.
- 8. Plaintiff Alexis Flores is an individual who resides in Philadelphia County, Pennsylvania. Ms. Flores worked for Defendants as a Server at the Country Club Diner (October 2014 to July 2015), the Warminster West Diner (September 2015 to June 2016) and Tiffany's Diner (July 2016). Throughout this time, Ms. Flores has worked about 40 hours per week. Ms. Flores is personally familiar with, and has been personally affected by, the policies and practices described in this Complaint.

- 9. Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. is a Pennsylvania corporation that, during the relevant period either on its own, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, or through related entities wholly-owned by its principals has owned and operated about twelve restaurants in the greater Philadelphia area, including: the Broad Street Diner (1135 S Broad St, Philadelphia PA 19147), the Brooklawn Diner (297 Crescent Blvd, Brooklawn, N.J. 08030), the Country Club Diner (1717 Cottman Ave, Philadelphia, PA 19111), Dawson's Restaurant (440 Plymouth Road, Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462), the Mayfair Diner (7373 Frankford Ave, Philadelphia PA 19136), the Melrose Diner (1501 Snyder Ave, Philadelphia, PA 19145), Michael's Café (3640 Street Road, Phila. PA 19020), Michael's Restaurant & Diner (3340 Street Road. Phila., PA 19020), Michael's Family Restaurant (501 S Easton Rd, Glenside, PA 19038), Ristorante La Veranda (Pier 3 Penn's Landing, Philadelphia, PA 19106), the Tiffany Diner (9010 Roosevelt Blvd, Philadelphia, PA 19115) and the Warminster West Diner (333 W Street Rd, Warminster, PA 18974).
- 10. Emmanuel Petrogiannis (a/k/a Mike Petrogiannis) is the President of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., its subsidiaries and related entities. During the relevant period, Emmanuel Petrogiannis has been involved in the day-to-day business operation of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., exercised operational control over Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. and controlled significant business functions of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc, including: determining employee salaries, making hiring decisions, controlling corporate checking and payroll accounts and acting for Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. to devise, direct, implement and supervise the wage and hour policies and practices challenged in this action.
- 11. Ioannis Petrogiannis (a/k/a John Petrogiannis) is the Treasurer of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., its subsidiaries and related entities. During the relevant period, Ioannis Petrogiannis has been involved in the day-to-day business operation of Michael's Family

Restaurant, Inc., exercised operational control over Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. and controlled significant business functions of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc, including: determining employee salaries, making hiring decisions, controlling corporate checking and payroll accounts and acting for Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. to devise, direct, implement and supervise the wage and hour policies and practices challenged in this action.

12. Nikolaos Petrogiannis (a/k/a Nick Petrogiannis) is the Secretary of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., its subsidiaries and related entities. During the relevant period, Nikolaos Petrogiannis has been involved in the day-to-day business operation of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., exercised operational control over Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. and controlled significant business functions of Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc, including: determining employee salaries, making hiring decisions, controlling corporate checking and payroll accounts and acting for Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc. to devise, direct, implement and supervise the wage and hour policies and practices challenged in this action.

#### MATERIAL FACTS

13. Defendants employ Servers, who are paid the tipped minimum wage rate, to wait on customers in their restaurants, answer questions about the menu, take food and drink orders from customers, place food and drink orders, collect food and drink orders from service areas, deliver food and drinks to customers and provide excellent customer service.

#### **Failure To Pay Overtime Wages**

- 14. Defendants track Servers' work time with a timeclock that Servers use to punch in and out from work.
- 15. Defendants require and permit Servers to work more than 40 hours per week, but maintain a strict company-wide policy against logging overtime hours (i.e., hours over 40 in any

given workweek) on the timeclock. As a result, Defendants do not create or maintain accurate contemporaneous records of Servers' overtime work.

- 16. When Servers work more than 40 hours in any given workweek, Defendants do not track this time or pay any wages for it. As a result, the only payment Servers receive for overtime work is their tips.
- 17. Ms. Blofstein routinely worked more than 40 hours in given workweeks as a Server for Defendants during the relevant period, was not allowed to track her overtime hours on Defendants' timeclock and, as a result, was not paid any wages for her overtime hours.

### **Maintenance Of An Illegal Tip Pool**

- 18. Defendants maintain a mandatory tip pool into which Servers must contribute a fixed sum from their tips each shift, depending on when they work. From Monday morning to Friday afternoon, the required tip pool contribution is either \$6.00 (in after 9:00 A.M.) or \$7.00 (in before 9:00 A.M.). On Friday, Saturday and Sunday nights, the required tip pool contribution is \$9.00. During the day on Saturday, the required tip pool contribution is \$12.00. During the day on Sunday, the required tip pool contribution is \$13.00.
- 19. Although Defendants ostensibly collect these pooled tips to provide Bussers with tips in addition to their wages, Defendants actually take possession of the pooled tips and use these funds to pay the wages of other employees, namely Bussers.
- 20. Ms. Blofstein and Ms. Flores both contributed the required sums into Defendants' tip pool at the end of every shift they worked during the relevant period. Defendants improperly converted this money, using it to subsidize Bussers' wages rather than providing tips in addition to their wages, rendering their tip pool invalid.

#### **JOINT EMPLOYMENT FACTS**

- 21. Throughout the relevant period, Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., Emmanuel Petrogiannis (a/k/a Mike Petrogiannis), Ioannis Petrogiannis (a/k/a John Petrogiannis) and Nikolaos Petrogiannis (a/k/a Nick Petrogiannis) (collectively "Defendants"), acting in a joint venture or as joint employers, formulated, approved, controlled and engaged in the illegal practices described in this Complaint, so are jointly and severally responsible for these practices
- 22. Defendants have been an integrated enterprise with inter-related operations, systems, policies, practices and labor relations.
- 23. Defendants served as each other's agents and worked in concert to accomplish the actions pled here.
- 24. Defendants have been actively engaged in the "day-to-day" management of work performed by Servers.
- 25. Defendants provided and enforced materially identical policies and practices relating to the performance of Servers' work.
- 26. Defendants required Servers to follow the same policies and procedures, including those for recording time.
- 27. Defendants established the wages Servers were paid for their work and the policies and procedures relating to the payment of these wages.
- 28. Defendants supervised and evaluated the job performance of Servers according to common criteria and standards set by Defendants.
- 29. Defendants are joint employers of Servers under the FLSA and PMWA because Defendants each had the right to: hire and fire these employees, set their wages, control their work, direct the manner in which they performed their work, inspect and supervise their work,

promulgate policies and procedures governing their employment (including the timekeeping and compensation policies and procedures at issue here) and enforce these policies and procedures.

30. The net effect of Defendants' policies and practices, instituted and approved by managers they hired and controlled, is that Defendants willfully failed to pay Servers earned overtime premium compensation for hours worked over 40 in any given workweek, providing Defendants with ill-gained earnings at the expense of their Servers.

#### FLSA COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

- 31. Plaintiffs bring their FLSA claims on a collective basis pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) for themselves and all people who worked as a Server in any of Defendants' restaurants during the maximum statutory limitations period (the "FLSA Collective").
- 32. Plaintiffs belong to the FLSA Collective because they worked as Servers in three of Defendants' restaurants during the relevant period and personally experienced the violations alleged herein.
- 33. Although the FLSA Collective members worked as Servers in different restaurants, this action may be properly maintained as a collective action because, among other things:
  - a. they worked under the same material terms and conditions of employment;
  - b. they performed the same job duties and had the same job-related responsibilities;
  - c. they received common training, directives and instructions;
  - d. they were governed by the same policies, practices and systems concerning work hours;
  - e. they were governed by the same timekeeping policies, practices and systems;
  - f. they were governed by the same compensation policies, practices and systems; and

- g. they were governed by the same policies, practices and systems concerning overtime hours and wages.
- 34. Plaintiffs and the FLSA Collective members do not meet any test for exemption under the FLSA.
- 35. As a result, Plaintiffs respectfully ask the Court to authorize the dissemination of notice to the FLSA Collective members informing them of the pendency of this action and their right to "opt-in" to this lawsuit pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- 36. Plaintiffs estimate that the FLSA Collective includes several hundred members. The precise number of FLSA Collective members can be easily ascertained with Defendants' payroll and personnel records, among other documents. Given the composition and size of the FLSA Collective, its members may be informed of the pendency of this action directly *via* U.S. mail and e-mail.

## PENNSYLVANIA CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

- 37. Plaintiffs bring their PMWA claims as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 for themselves and all Pennsylvania residents who worked as a Server in any of Defendants' restaurants since December 13, 2014 (the "Pennsylvania Class").
- 38. Plaintiffs belong to the Pennsylvania Class because they are Pennsylvania residents who worked as Servers in Defendants' restaurants during the relevant period and personally experienced the violations alleged herein.
- 39. Plaintiffs' claims for violation of the PMWA may be maintained on a class-wide basis because their claims satisfy the requirements of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23.
- 40. The Pennsylvania Class is so numerous that joinder of all its members would be impracticable. Plaintiffs estimate that several hundred Pennsylvania residents have worked as Servers in Defendants' restaurants during the relevant period.

- 41. Material questions of law or fact common to the Pennsylvania Class members predominate over any individual issues, including:
  - a. Whether Defendants paid the Pennsylvania Class members any wages for the overtime work they were suffered or permitted to perform;
  - b. Whether Defendants maintained an invalid tip pool;
  - c. Whether Defendants willfully failed to comply with the PMWA; and
  - d. Whether Defendants raise defenses common to the Pennsylvania Class members.
- 42. Plaintiffs' claims are typical of the claims belonging to the Pennsylvania Class members in that they are similarly-situated employees who performed similar work under similar terms, conditions, policies and practices and have been similarly harmed.
- 43. This action may be properly maintained as a class action because Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately assert and protect the interests of the members of both putative Classes as follows:
  - a. there is no apparent conflict of interest between Plaintiffs and the members of both putative Classes, especially in light of the relatively small value of each Class member's claim and the costs and burdens associated with bringing individual wage claims;
  - b. Plaintiffs' attorneys have significant experience in the litigation of complex civil and class action matters in this Court, and will adequately represent the interests of the Class; and
  - c. Plaintiffs have access to adequate financial resources to assure that the interests of the Class will not be harmed because, consistent with the Pennsylvania Rules of Professional Conduct, Plaintiffs' counsel have agreed to advance the costs and expenses of this litigation contingent upon the outcome of the case.
- 44. This action may be properly maintained as a class action because it will provide a fair and efficient method for adjudication of the issues presented by this controversy as follows:

- a. common questions of law or fact predominate over any questions affecting only individual members, as Plaintiffs seek to remedy a common legal grievance, namely Defendants' failure to pay all wages owed as a result of their improper misclassification as exempt employees;
- b. no difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this litigation as a class action, given that Defendants' records will assist in identifying the members of both putative Classes and verifying the value of their claims;
- c. this forum is particularly appropriate for adjudicating these claims as this Court has significant experience with class action litigation; and
- d. the claims addressed in this Complaint are not too small to justify the expenses of class-wide litigation, nor are they likely to be so substantial as to require the litigation of individual claims.
- 45. Allowing Plaintiffs' Pennsylvania and New Jersey wage law claims to proceed as a class action will be superior to requiring the individual adjudication of each Class member's claim, since requiring hundreds of hourly-paid employees to file and litigate individual wage claims would cause an undue burden on Defendants, the Class members and the Courts. Class action treatment will allow a large number of similarly-situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently and without the unnecessary duplication of effort and expenses if these claims were brought individually. Moreover, as the damages suffered by each Class member are relatively small, the expenses and burdens associated with individual litigation would make it difficult for plaintiffs to bring individual claims. Further, the presentation of separate actions by individual Class members could create a risk for inconsistent and varying adjudications, establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants and/or substantially impair or impede the ability of Class members to protect their interests.

# COUNT I VIOLATION OF THE FLSA Failure To Pay Overtime Wages (For All Of Defendants' Servers)

- 46. Each of the preceding paragraphs is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
  - 47. Defendants are "employers" as defined by 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).
- 48. Plaintiffs and the FLSA collective are "employees" as defined by 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1).
- 49. The wages Defendants pay to Plaintiffs and the FLSA collective are "wages" as defined by 29 U.S.C. § 203(m).
- 50. Defendants are an "enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce" within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(s)(1)(A).
- 51. Throughout the relevant period, Defendants have been obligated to comply with the FLSA's requirements, Plaintiffs and the FLSA collective have been covered employees entitled to the FLSA's protections, and Plaintiffs and the FLSA collective have not been exempt from receiving wages required by the FLSA for any reason.
- 52. 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) requires employers to pay their employee an overtime rate, equal to at least 1½ times their regular rate of pay, for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.
- 53. As alleged herein, Defendants have intentionally violated this provision of the FLSA through common, company-wide policies and practices that include: permitting Servers to work more than 40 hours per week; maintaining a strict policy against logging overtime hours on the timeclock; failing to maintain an accurate contemporaneous record of Servers' overtime work; and failing to pay Servers' any wages for their overtime work.

- 54. By engaging in this conduct, Defendants have acted with willful and/or reckless disregard for the FLSA Collective members' rights under the FLSA.
- 55. Plaintiffs and the FLSA Collective members have been harmed as a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful conduct, because they have been deprived of overtime premium wages owed for overtime work they performed and from which Defendants derived a direct and substantial benefit.
- 56. 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) expressly allows private plaintiffs to bring collective actions to enforce an employers' failure to comply with their requirements.
- 57. Plaintiffs and the FLSA collective are similarly-situated individuals within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §216(b).

# COUNT II VIOLATION OF THE FLSA Maintenance Of An Illegal Tip Pool (for the proposed multi-state collective)

- 58. Each of the preceding paragraphs is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
- 59. The FLSA provides that tipped employees are entitled to retain all of the tips they receive, but allows the "pooling of tips among employees who customarily and regularly receive tips." *See* 29 U.S.C. § 203(m).
- 60. The U.S. Department of Labor Field Operations Handbook provides that, in the context of operating a tip pool, an employer may not retain any of an employee's tips for any purpose. *See* DOL Field Operations Handbook § 30d04 (12/15/16), *citing* 29 CFR 531.54.
- 61. Defendants require all Servers to participate in a tip pool as a condition of their employment.

- 62. As alleged herein, Defendants have collected pooled tips from Servers under the pretense that the money will be used to supplement Bussers' wages; improperly taken possession of these pooled tips; used the pooled tips to pay Bussers' wages; and deprived Bussers of their share of the tip pool.
- 63. By engaging in this conduct, Defendants have acted with willful and/or reckless disregard for the FLSA Collective members' rights under the FLSA.
- 64. Plaintiffs and the FLSA Collective members have been harmed as a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful conduct, which has unlawfully deprived them of tip income through the maintenance of an illegal tip pool.

# COUNT III VIOLATION OF THE PMWA Failure To Pay Overtime Wages (for the Pennsylvania class)

- 65. Each of the preceding paragraphs is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
  - 66. Defendants are "Employers" as defined in PMWA § 3(g).
- 67. Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members are "Employees" as defined by PMWA § 3(h).
- 68. The unpaid wages at issue in this litigation are "Wages" as defined by PMWA § 3(d).
- 69. Throughout the relevant period, Defendants were obligated to comply with the PMWA's requirements, Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members were covered employees entitled to the PMWA's protections, and Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members were not exempt from receiving wages required by the PMWA for any reason.

- 70. Throughout the relevant period, MWA § 4(c) required Defendants to pay Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members overtime compensation of "not less than one and one-half times the employee's regular rate" for all hours worked over 40 in a given workweek.
- 71. Under the MWA, overtime is calculated based on the number of hours worked in a "workweek", defined in controlling regulations as "a period of 7 consecutive days". *See* 34 Pa. Code § 231.42.
- 72. Throughout the relevant period, MWA § 8 required Defendants to "keep a true and accurate record of the hours worked by each employee and the wages paid to each."
- 73. Defendants have intentionally violated these provisions of the PMWA through common, company-wide policies and practices that include: requiring and permitting Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members to work more than 40 hours in given workweeks; maintaining a strict policy against logging overtime hours on the timeclock; failing to maintain an accurate contemporaneous record of overtime work performed by Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members; and failing to pay Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members any wages for their overtime work.
- 74. By engaging in this conduct, Defendants have acted with willful and/or reckless disregard for Plaintiffs' and the Pennsylvania Class members' rights under the PMWA.
- 75. Defendants have no good faith justification or defense for the conduct detailed above, or for failing to pay Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members all wages mandated by the MWA.
- 76. Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members have been harmed as a direct and proximate result of the unlawful conduct described here, because they have been deprived of

legally-required wages for work they performed from which Defendants derived a direct and substantial benefit.

- 77. PMWA § 13 expressly allows private plaintiffs to bring a civil action to enforce an employers' failure to comply with the PMWA's requirements.
- 78. PMWA § 13 expressly provides that an agreement between the employer and employee to work for less than the required minimum wage is not a defense to an action seeking to recover unpaid minimum wages.

# COUNT IV VIOLATION OF THE PMWA Maintenance Of An Illegal Tip Pool (for the Pennsylvania class)

- 79. Each of the preceding paragraphs is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
- 80. The PMWA provides that tipped employees are entitled to retain all of the tips they receive, but allows the "pooling of tips among employees who customarily and regularly receive tips." *See* PMWA § 3(d)(2).
- 81. Defendants require all Servers to participate in a tip pool as a condition of their employment.
- 82. As alleged herein, Defendants have collected pooled tips from Servers under the pretense that the money would be used to supplement the hourly wages of Bussers by providing them with tips when in reality, they improperly took possession of these pooled tips and used them to satisfy their hourly wage obligations to Bussers.
- 83. By engaging in this conduct, Defendants have acted with willful and/or reckless disregard for the Pennsylvania Class members' rights under the PMWA.

84. Plaintiffs and the Pennsylvania Class members have been harmed as a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful conduct, which has unlawfully deprived them of tip income through the maintenance of an illegal tip pool.

## WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray for an Order:

- a. Certifying this matter to proceed as a collective action with respect to Counts I-III and as a class action with respect to Counts IV-V;
- b. Appointing Stephan Zouras, LLP to serve as Class Counsel;
- c. Approving Plaintiffs as adequate Class representatives;
- f. Finding that Defendants willfully violated the applicable provisions of the FLSA and PMWA by failing to pay all required overtime wages to Plaintiffs and the collective / class members;
- f. Finding that Defendants willfully violated the applicable provisions of the FLSA and PMWA by maintaining an illegal tip pool;
- g. Granting judgment in favor of Plaintiffs and the collective / class members against Defendants, and each of them, jointly and severally, on Counts I-IV;
- h. Awarding all available compensatory damages in amounts to be determined;
- i. Awarding all available liquidated damages in amounts to be determined;
- j. Awarding pre-judgment interest on all compensatory damages due;
- k. Awarding a reasonable attorney's fee and reimbursement of all costs and expenses incurred in litigating this action;
- 1. Awarding equitable and injunctive relief precluding the continuation of the policies and practices pled in this Complaint;
- m. Awarding any further relief the Court deems just, necessary and proper; and
- n. Maintaining jurisdiction over this action to ensure Defendants' compliance with the foregoing.

# **JURY DEMAND**

Plaintiffs demand a jury trial as to all claims so triable.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dated: December 12, 2017 /s/ David J. Cohen

David J. Cohen STEPHAN ZOURAS, LLP 604 Spruce Street Philadelphia, PA 19106 (215) 873-4836

James B. Zouras Ryan F. Stephan STEPHAN ZOURAS, LLP 205 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 2560 Chicago, IL 60601 312-233-1550

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and the Putative Class and Collective Members

# **CONSENT TO JOIN**

# Michael's Family Restaurant Wage Lawsuit United States District Court, Eastern District of Pennsylvania

Complete and Mail, Fax or E-mail to:

Stephan Zouras, LLP

Michael's Family Restaurant Wage Lawsuit

205 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 2560
Chicago, Illinois 60601
Fax: (312) 233-1560
E-mail: lawyers@stephanzouras.com

By signing below, I state that I have been employed as a Server by Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., Emmanuel Petrogiannis (a/k/a Mike Petrogiannis), Ioannis Petrogiannis (a/k/a John Petrogiannis), or Nikolaos Petrogiannis (a/k/a Nick Petrogiannis) (collectively the "Defendants") within the past three years and that I hereby consent to join this lawsuit seeking unpaid wages based on Defendants' alleged violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et. seq.

I hereby designate the law firm Stephan Zouras, LLP, to represent me for all purposes of this action.

I hereby designate the Class Representative as my agent to make decisions on my behalf concerning this lawsuit, the method and manner of conducting the lawsuit, the entering of an agreement with Plaintiffs' counsel concerning attorneys' fees and costs, and all other matters pertaining to this lawsuit.

-DocuSigned by:

12/11/2017	chario flas	
Date	Signature	
	Alexis Flores	
	Print Name Clearly	

\*Statute of limitations concerns mandate that you return this form as soon as possible to preserve your rights.

# **CONSENT TO JOIN**

Michael's Family Restaurant Wage Lawsuit
United States District Court, Eastern District of Pennsylvania

Complete and Mail, Fax or E-mail to:

Stephan Zouras, LLP

Michael's Family Restaurant Wage Lawsuit
205 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 2560
Chicago, Illinois 60601
Fax: (312) 233-1560
E-mail: lawyers@stephanzouras.com

By signing below, I state that I have been employed as a Server by Michael's Family Restaurant, Inc., Emmanuel Petrogiannis (a/k/a Mike Petrogiannis), Ioannis Petrogiannis (a/k/a

John Petrogiannis), or Nikolaos Petrogiannis (a/k/a Nick Petrogiannis) (collectively the "Defendants") within the past three years and that I hereby consent to join this lawsuit seeking unpaid wages based on Defendants' alleged violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et. seq.

0.5.C. § 201, et. seq.

I hereby designate the law firm Stephan Zouras, LLP, to represent me for all purposes of this action.

I hereby designate the Class Representative as my agent to make decisions on my behalf concerning this lawsuit, the method and manner of conducting the lawsuit, the entering of an agreement with Plaintiffs' counsel concerning attorneys' fees and costs, and all other matters pertaining to this lawsuit.

Signature Sustem
Print Name Clearly

\*Statute of limitations concerns mandate that you return this form as soon as possible to preserve your rights.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

AMOUNT

# **CIVIL COVER SHEET**

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

purpose of initiating the civil of	locket sheet. (SEE INSTRU	CTIONS ON NEXT PAGE O	of the Uni FTHIS FO	ited States in Septembe	r 1974, is requ	ired for the use of	f the Clerk of Co	ourt for t	he
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS				r ·		<u> </u>			
MICHELLE BLOFSTEIN AND ALEXIS FLORES			DEFENDANTS MICHAEL'S FAMILY RESTAURANTS, INC., EMMANUEL PETROGIANNIS, IOANNIS PETROGIANNIS						
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Montgomery Co., PA		۸	and NIKOLAOS	PETROGIA	NNIS				
	EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF C			County of Residen		ed Defendant LAINTIFF CASES (	Philadelphia	Co., P	<u>'A</u>
				NOTE: IN LAND THE TRAC		ON CASES, USE T		ЭF	
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name,	Address, and Telephone Numb	er)		Attorneys (If Know)	n)				
David J. Cohen, Stephal 604 Spruce Street, Phila (215) 873-4836	delphia, PA 19106			N/A					
II. BASIS OF JURISD	ICTION (Place an "X" in (	One Box Only)	III. CI	TIZENSHIP OF	PRINCIPA	I. PARTIES	(Plans on "V" in	One Book	For Internation
☐ 1 U.S. Government				(For Diversity Cases Only,	)	CIARILES	and One Box fo		
Plaintiff	(U.S. Government	Not a Party)	Citize		PTF DEF	Incorporated or Pr	rincinal Place	PTF	DEF EX 4
						of Business In			<b>2</b>
☐ 2 U.S. Government Defendant	☐ 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizensi	nip of Parties in Item III)	Citize	en of Another State	O 2 O 2	Incorporated and I of Business In .		D 5	<b>D</b> 5
	<del></del>			n or Subject of a eign Country	<b>3 3 3</b>	Foreign Nation		□ 6	O 6
IV. NATURE OF SUIT					Click	here for: Nature	of Suit Code De	scription	IS.
☐ 110 Insurance	PERSONAL INJURY	ORTS PERSONAL INJURY		RFEITURE/PENALTY		KRUPTCY	OTHER		ES
☐ 120 Marine ☐ 130 Miller Act	310 Airplane	365 Personal Injury -	1	5 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881		al 28 USC 158 Irawal	☐ 375 False Cla ☐ 376 Qui Tam		
☐ 140 Negotiable Instrument	☐ 315 Airplane Product Liability	Product Liability  367 Health Care/	□ 690	Other	28 U	SC 157	3729(a))	1	
<ul> <li>150 Recovery of Overpayment</li> <li>&amp; Enforcement of Judgment</li> </ul>	320 Assault, Lihel & Slander	Pharmaceutical				TY RIGHTS	☐ 400 State Rea☐ 410 Antitrust		
151 Medicare Act	330 Federal Employers'	Personal Injury Product Liability	İ		<ul> <li>□ 820 Copyr</li> <li>□ 830 Patent</li> </ul>		430 Banks an		g
13 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans	Liability	368 Asbestos Personal				- Abbreviated	☐ 450 Commerci ☐ 460 Deportati		
(Excludes Veterans)	☐ 340 Marine ☐ 345 Marine Product	Injury Product Liability			New I ☐ 840 Trade	Orug Application	☐ 470 Racketee	r Influenc	
153 Recovery of Overpayment	Liability	PERSONAL PROPER		LABOR		SECURITY	Corrupt C	Organizatio or Credit	ons
of Veteran's Benefits  ☐ 160 Stockholders' Suits	☐ 350 Motor Vehicle ☐ 355 Motor Vehicle	370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending	25 710	Fair Labor Standards	☐ 861 HIA (	1395ff)	☐ 490 Cable/Sat	t TV	
☐ 190 Other Contract	Product Liability	380 Other Personal	☐ 720	Act Labor/Management	☐ 862 Black ☐ 863 DIWC	Lung (923) C/DIWW (405(g))	☐ 850 Securities Exchange		dities/
<ul> <li>195 Contract Product Liability</li> <li>196 Franchise</li> </ul>	360 Other Personal Injury	Property Damage  385 Property Damage		Relations	☐ 864 SSID	Title XVI	☐ 890 Other Sta	tutory Ac	tions
	☐ 362 Personal Injury -	Product Liability		Railway Labor Act Family and Medical	□ 865 RSI (4	(U5(g))	☐ 891 Agricultu ☐ 893 Environm		ters
REAL PROPERTY	Medical Malpractice CIVIL RIGHTS	PRISONER PETITION	200	Leave Act Other Labor Litigation	DED DED A	F MILLY OF WIND	☐ 895 Freedom		
210 Land Condempation	☐ 440 Other Civil Rights	Habeas Corpus:		Employee Retirement		(U.S. Plaintiff	Act  ☐ 896 Arbitration	n .	
☐ 220 Foreclosure ☐ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment	☐ 441 Voting ☐ 442 Employment	☐ 463 Alien Detainee	1	Income Security Act	or De	fendant)	☐ 899 Administr		cedure
J 240 Torts to Land	443 Housing/	510 Motions to Vacate Sentence			□ 871 IRS— 26 US	Third Party C 7609		w or App	eal of
J 245 Tort Product Liability J 290 All Other Real Property	Accommodations	☐ 530 General			20 0.5	ic 1007	Agency D  950 Constituti		f
J 270 All Other Real Property	☐ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment	Other:	□ 462	IMMIGRATION  Naturalization Applicatio			State State	utes	
	446 Amer. w/Disabilities -	540 Mandamus & Other	r 🗇 465	Other Immigration	n l				
	Other  448 Education	550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition		Actions					
		☐ 560 Civil Detainee -	- 1						
		Conditions of Confinement	ł			i			
V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in	One Box Only)				-J		<u> </u>		
▼1 Original □ 2 Rer	noved from  3	Remanded from  Appellate Court	4 Reinst		ferred from	□ 6 Multidistri Litigation		Multidist Litigation	
	Cita the IIS Civil Sta	futo undos subisti	Cities (D	(specify	v)	Transfer		irect File	<u>e</u>
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	L Fair Labor Standa	tute under which you are ards Act of 1938, 29	U.S.C.	o not cite jurisdictional sta Sec. 201 et seq.	itutes unless dive	ersity):			
W CHOSE OF ACTIO	in the description of ca	use: ertime wages / maint	enance	of an illegal tip po	ol				
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:	CHECK IF THIS UNDER RULE 2:	IS A CLASS ACTION		MAND \$	CF	IECK YES only i		•	t:
VIII. RELATED CASE		·, · .1		<del>-</del>	JU	RY DEMAND:	▼ Yes	□No	
IF ANY	(See instructions):	JUDGE N/A		and the state of t	DOCKET	NUMBER			
DATE		SIGNATURE OF ATTO	ORNEY OF	RECORD					
12/13/2107		David J. Cohen		/\	J. Service Control of the Control of				

APPLYING IFP

JUDGE

MAG. JUDGE

# IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

# CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM

Michelle Blofst	ein :	CIVIL ACTION			
Michael's Family Restaurant, In	1 c.,etal.	NO.	al for		
plaintiff shall complete a Case filing the complaint and serve a side of this form.) In the even designation, that defendant shat the plaintiff and all other partic	Management Track Designation copy on all defendants. (See § cent that a defendant does not a light with its first appearance, sul	uction Plan of this court, counse in Form in all civil cases at the tir 1:03 of the plan set forth on the re- gree with the plaintiff regarding omit to the clerk of court and ser Designation Form specifying the	verse said ve on		
SELECT ONE OF THE FOI	LLOWING CASE MANAGE	MENT TRACKS:			
(a) Habeas Corpus – Cases br	ought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 t	hrough § 2255.	( )		
(b) Social Security – Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits.					
(c) Arbitration – Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. ( )					
(d) Asbestos – Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from exposure to asbestos.					
commonly referred to as o	ses that do not fall into tracks (complex and that need special of this form for a detailed ex	r intense management by	$\bowtie$		
(f) Standard Management – G	Cases that do not fall into any o	ne of the other tracks.	( )		
12/13/17	David J. Colven Attorney-at-law	Plainhiffs			
Date	Attorney-at-law	Attorney for	MARK CON		
215-873-4836	312-233-1560	dwhene stephanz			
Telephone	FAX Number	E-Mail Address			

(Civ. 660) 10/02

# Case 2:17-cv-05578-RBS Document 1-5 Filed 12/13/17 Page 1 of 1 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA — DESIGNATION FORM to be assignment to appropriate calendar.	
Address of Plaintiff: 198 Lincoln Ave., Hertboro,	PA 19040
Address of Defendant: 3340 Street Rd. Philadelp	Mic, PA 19020
Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction: Philadelphia County	PA dditional Space)
Does this civil action involve a nongovernmental corporate party with any parent corporation at	nd any publicly held corporation owning 10% or more of its stock?
(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed.R.Civ.P. 7.1(a))	%f'
Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities?	Yes□ No <b>⊠</b>
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:	
Case Number:Judge	Date Terminated:
Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:	
1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year	
	Yes NoX
2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior s action in this court?	uit pending or within one year previously terminated
	Yes□ No <b>X</b>
3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier n	
terminated action in this court?	Yes□ No <b>⊠</b>
4. Is this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil right	s case filed by the same individual?
	Yes□ No <b>Z</b>
CIVIL: (Place  in ONE CATEGORY ONLY)	
A. Federal Question Cases:	B. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:
1.   Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts	1.   Insurance Contract and Other Contracts
2. D FELA	2.   Airplane Personal Injury
3. □ Jones Act-Personal Injury	3.   Assault, Defamation
4. □ Antitrust	4.   Marine Personal Injury
5. □ Patent	5. D Motor Vehicle Personal Injury
6. □ Labor-Management Relations	6. □ Other Personal Injury (Please specify)
7. □ Civil Rights	7. D Products Liability
8.   Habeas Corpus	8.   Products Liability — Asbestos
9. □ Securities Act(s) Cases	9. D All other Diversity Cases
10. □ Social Security Review Cases	(Please specify)
11. All other Federal Question Cases (Please specify) F.L.S.A., 29 U.S.C. \$5201, et Seq.	
ARBITRATION CERT	
i, David J. Cohen , counsel of record do hereby certi	fy:
'pa' Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my knowledge and	belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case exceed the sum of
\$150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs;  Relief other than monetary damages is sought.	
DATE: 12/13/17	74070
DATE: Attorney-at-Law	Attorney I.D.#
NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if th	ere has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.
I certify that, to my knowledge, the within case is not related to any case now pending or	within one year previously terminated action in this court
except as noted above.	74070
DATE: 12/13/17	19070 Attorney I.D.#
Attorney_at_I aw	AUOMEV LD.#

CIV. 609 (5/2012)

# **ClassAction.org**

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: Michael's Family Restaurant, Three Individuals Pegged with Unpaid Wage Lawsuit